1953

Jack Aldon Hewitt v. The General Tire and Rubber Co. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This suit was brought by the appellant, Jack Aldon Hewitt, against the respondent, The General Tire and Rubber Company, a corporation of Ohio, and Wheeler General Tire Company, a corporation of Utah, to recover damages for personal injuries consisting of a permanent, crippling injury to appellant's right hand and wrist, resulting from the exploding of a new tire manufactured by the respondent, The General Tire and Rubber Company, which tire the appellant was mounting upon a

wheel at the time the explosion occurred. The explosion occurred on July 2, 1952, at the service station operated by the appellant on the southwest corner of 11th East Street and Hollywood Avenue in Salt Lake City, Utah. The appellant alleged in his complaint that the respondent the General Tire and Rubber Company was negligent in the manufacture of the tire and in causing the said tire to come into the hands of the appellant in a highly dangerous, defective condition. The appellant alleged in that connection that the tire had a defective beading and was incapable of containing normal air pressure, and that such defective condition rendered the tire highly dangerous to the life and limb of anyone who would be called upon to first mount the tire upon a wheel; that the respondent knew of such dangerous and defective condition, or in the exercise of ordinary care should have known of it. At the conclusion of the presentation of the evidence, the respondent moved the court for a directed verdict (R. 444, 445), which motion the court took under advisement pending the verdict. The matter was submitted to the jury and the jury found the issues in favor of the appellant and against the respondent The General Tire and Rubber Company of Ohio, and returned a verdict in favor of the appellant for damages in the amount of \$14,889 (R. 63 A). Judgment was then entered on the verdict on April 24, 1953 (R. 63). Thereafter, the respondent moved for a directed verdict and for a new trial in the alternative (R. 63, 64). The court having reserved its ruling on the original motion for a directed verdict pending the findings of the jury entered its order granting the respondent's

motion (R. 66), and thereafter entered judgment setting aside the verdict and judgment entered thereon, and gave judgment no cause of action in favor of the respondent and against the appellant. From such order and judgment of the trial court, this appeal was taken by the appellant.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiff suffered a very severe injury to his right hand and wrist which resulted in sixty to seventy-five per cent permanent disability (R. 113).

The witness LeRoy P. Murphy, an employee of the Granite Furniture Company, testified that on July 2, 1952, he drove one of the Furniture Company's trucks over to Jack Hewitt's Texaco Service Station on 11th East and Hollywood Avenue in Sugarhouse for the purpose of having a tire mounted on a wheel. He obtained the tire from the rack in the basement where the tires were stored, and the witness instructed the plaintiff to mount the tire on the wheel (R. 138, 139). He didn't know how he could have injured the tire in any way in delivering the tire to the plaintiff (R. 139, 140).

The plaintiff testified that he managed and operated the Texaco Service Station at 1974 South 11th East and had done so since September 12, 1951. That on July 2, 1952, the witness Murphy, an employee of the Granite Furniture Company, delivered the tire, Exhibit 7, to the plaintiff to be mounted on the spare wheel. Plaintiff has had considerable experience in mounting tires having

repaired hundreds of tires. He identified Exhibit 18 as the spare wheel of the Granite Furniture truck (R. 168, 170). He also identified Exhibit 7 as the tire involved in the explosion. He identified plaintiff's Exhibit 19 as the rubber mallet which he used at the station for the mounting of tires and which he used for the mounting of Exhibit 7. The witness then proceeded to demonstrate the procedure of mounting a tire before the court and jury, stating that he bounced the tire a couple of times and inspected it from all of its angles.

Exhibit 7 appeared to have been in storage for quite some time as it had dust on it and cobwebs inside of it, which he proceeded to clean out with an air hose (R. 171, 172). He just made a normal examination of the tire which appeared to be sound and there weren't any appearances of breaks or deviation in the casing. He is certain that the deviation in the casing opposite the broken bead area was not there at the time he mounted the tire, and he did not observe any scuffing on the tire at all. He did not observe the little break that appears to be under the red dot on the tire. He believes he would have noticed it had it existed on the tire at the time he examined it before the explosion (R. 172). He forced the wheel into the one side of the tire and then took the rubber hammer putting one foot on the tire to keep the rest of the tire from coming back off the wheel and it didn't require much force to knock the tire into place. Then he put the tube in the tire which at that time had been repaired and tested and there were no breaks in it at all (R. 174). After demonstrating the manner in

which he put the tube in the tire, the witness testified that he put the other half of the tire on with a rubber mallet until the tire was entirely on. He used no implement in the mounting process other than Exhibit 19. He then inflated the tube so that as far as he could determine there were no kinks in it, and the tire was inflated to fit the beaded area on the wheel. He examined the beaded area and determined that the tire was in position on the rim. He then inserted the valve core and proceeded to inflate the tire. He inflated it to what he thought was sufficient pressure (R. 175, 176). He checked the pressure in the tire with the tire gauge. The tire gauge disclosed there were between 30 and 34 pounds in the tire. There has been no change in the tire gauge since the accident, and he has only used it since the accident to check its accuracy with other gauges. He had bought the gauge within a week or ten days before the accident, and before the accident had checked as many as 20 to 30 tires a day with the gauge. The gauge was received in evidence as Exhibit 20 (R. 177). At the time he tested the tire he could see the 30 clearly on the gauge, but 34 (the next graduation) was not evident. The standard pressure on that truck was 35 pounds and as this wheel was a spare, he intended to put 40 pounds of air into it. He connected the air hose to the valve stem and momentarily there was a violent explosion. He shook his head and was sitting in a pool of blood. He saw the tire hit the ground and begin to rotate. The following questions and answers were given at this point (R. 180, 181):

“Q. How long had the air hose been in contact with the valve and was air being introduced

into the tire after you made the thirty-four pound measurement before the explosion occurred?

“A. It would be kind of hard to say in measurements of time, but I exerted my pressure on to the air hose when it did explode. Air was entering it, I know, but it was a very short time, a very short time. A matter of split seconds.

“Q. About how much air, based on your experience, would you say you had introduced on this second application—

“A. I should estimate it was—

“Q. —before the explosion occurred?

“A. In the neighborhood of thirty-eight pounds, I would estimate. I know I wasn't taking the hose off to see if it was the forty pounds yet, the forty pound pressure, so I would estimate it was thirty-eight.

“Q. With what degree of certainty can you say that you had not introduced into this tire at that time in excess of thirty-eight pounds of air?

“A. I have made quite a few experiments. Not intentionally, just through curiosity and like if a tire comes in and the fellow wants thirty-eight pounds in his tires I can check and lots of times it will be thirty-eight pounds. Sometimes it might be thirty and sometimes thirty-six. But lots of times if it isn't right on the mark it will be right around a pound one way or another.

“Q. And you say you had just touched the air hose with contact on the valve when the explosion occurred?

“A. Yes, sir.”

When Exhibit 7 was brought into the station by

the Granite Furniture Company to be mounted there was a small paper tag with an adhesive back, stuck to the tread of the tire. It is customary for new tires to have that kind of a tag on. The respondent stipulated that the tire was new and hadn't been on a vehicle before (R. 185, 186).

He did not use soap in mounting the tire, but in the average service station, in his experience, soap is not used (R. 214). He was certain that the beads were on the shelf when he inflated the tube and set the bead (R. 207). Plaintiff has had custody of the tire since the accident either in the back of his house or in the back of the car. Nothing whatsoever has been done to the tire, Exhibit 7. It is in exactly the same condition as it was following the accident (R. 220-227). The purpose of the preliminary inflation of air is to center the tire on the rim properly as in the process of inserting it into the tire it is easy to twist the tube or get it at an angle. One of the primary purposes is to straighten the kink of the tube out, if there is one there (R. 227, 228). When he inflated the tire for the first time to bring the bead in position against the wheel and to straighten the tube within the tire, he rotated the tire with his hand to observe the full circumference of the bead on both sides. He observed no irregularities which would indicate that part of the tube was caught between the bead and the wheel. If there had been such a condition he would have observed it (R. 230).

The witness Tom Evans testified that he is a newspaper reporter and editor of the "News Bulletin" in

Sugarhouse and on July 2, 1952, he was directly across the street from the plaintiff's service station in an ice cream parlor when he heard a sharp report like a rifle crack and turned around quickly. He saw the plaintiff falling to the ground. He was entirely off the ground and coming down, probably two or three feet in the air. Momentarily, thereafter he saw the tire and wheel fall near the plaintiff and spin. He went directly over to the service station where some fellows had already taken hold of Jack and started diagonally across the street, and he saw that the tire had blown up (R. 141, 142). He followed closely behind the men taking the plaintiff to the doctor's office. When he arrived at the doctor's office, the plaintiff was lying on a table in a dazed condition, and the plaintiff groaned a greeting to him. Less than five minutes had expired since the explosion. The following conversation took place at the doctor's office:

“Q. Now what did he say to you at that time?

“A. He didn't say much. I said, ‘Jack, how did it happen?’ and he replied, ‘The tire blew up’ and I said, ‘What did you do, put four hundred pounds of air in it?’ He said, ‘No, I just had a little over thirty.’ And I said, ‘I never heard of a thing like that’.” (A. 143, 144).

When the witness saw the wheel and tire coming out of the air, the tire was still on the wheel (R. 145), that is approximately a quarter of one side of the tire was off the rim (R. 146).

The witness Everett Simmons testified that he was a line driver for Garrett Freightlines, and on July 2,

1952, was living at 1952 South Eleventh East, which is directly across the street on the north from the plaintiff's service station on the west side of 11th East Street. He was standing in front of his residence when he heard the explosion. He saw the plaintiff extended in the air (R. 159, 160). Plaintiff appeared to be four to five feet in the air, and the witness ran immediately to the station where he saw the plaintiff lying on the cement within about four feet of the grease rack in a pool of blood. The witness picked the plaintiff up and took him across the street to the doctor's office with the assistance of two other men (R. 161, 162).

The witness Ralph Moran testified that he is a newspaper pressman and on July 2, 1952, at about 4:30 in the afternoon he was about three doors south of the plaintiff's service station when he heard the noise. He started running in that direction and upon arriving at the service station, he saw the plaintiff lying on the driveway, and the tire and wheel were spinning around like a top (R. 163, 164). He noticed that part of the tire was off the rim about one-fourth or one-third of one side of the tire. He raised out on the tire and saw the tube which had a hole in it, and it was definitely torn. The tube was still inside the casing. He judged that the tear in the tube was as extensive as the area of the tire which was off the rim. He used no implements other than his own hand in examining the tire. He observed that the casing of the tire had a broken bead (R. 165, 166). He had seen a broken bead before and by flexing

the bead with his hand he was able to determine that there was a definite weakness (R. 167).

Dr. Irwin F. Winter who specializes in x-ray diagnosis (R. 122) testified that he took x-ray pictures (Exhibits 8, 9, 10) of the defective tire (Exhibit 7) (R. 123, 124) which show that each and all of the strands of wire in the bead were broken (R. 126). Dr. Winter was unable to identify any narrowing or decrease in diameter of the wires near the point of fracture (R. 130).

Witness Dick Rogers testified that he is a tire salesman and has been for approximately fourteen years, and is presently employed by the Dick Morrison Tire Company; that he mounts tires every day in connection with his work. The first thing he does when he mounts a tire is to put the tube in the casing, then he mounts the first half of the casing on the wheel (R. 253, 254). He then puts the valve stem in place, puts his foot on the tire by the valve stem and then with a mallet forces the bead down into the well. He then would inflate the tire with the valve gut out of the stem until both beads were properly seated. Then he puts the valve center back in and blows up the tire at the proper correct pressure. He does not apply any tire gauge to the tube on the first inflation because not enough air pressure is put in. The purpose of the first inflation is to straighten out the tube within the casing and to firm the beading into place on the rim. The witness stated that he has mounted in excess of five thousand tires during his fifteen years of experience (R. 255, 256). He procured Exhibit 12, which is a new General tire for purposes of

demonstration. He cut the bead out of the tire for plaintiff's attorney (Exhibit 22). It was stipulated that the bead in the experimental tire (Exhibit 12) was the same in construction as in Exhibit 7. The witness put yellow crayon marks on Exhibit 12 to indicate the area where he tried to damage the tire and break the bead by pounding with Exhibit 23 and 24 (R. 257, 258). He put the hammer on the cement floor and used the rubber side of the heavy tire mallet for some time, but couldn't make any headway so he turned it over and used the steel side and still didn't make much headway. He carried on a sustained pounding of the bead except for periods of resting for about thirty minutes between the area bounded by the two pieces of tape (R. 259). Dr. Winter also took X-rays of the experimental tire (Exhibit 12) which was similar in construction, tread and design to Exhibit 7 (R. 128). These X-rays showed no irregularities in the bead on the experimental tire in the area where the casing was damaged and broken (R. 130). The bead is essential to enable the tire to hold air pressure on the rim (R. 260). Mr. Rogers testified that he had been present when a new tire has exploded with the broken bead on a previous occasion when an attempt was made to inflate the tire (R. 261). If thirty-five pounds of air pressure were introduced into a tire, and the bead were broken, the tire would blow (R. 262). At Dick Morrison's where they mount a lot of tires, they do not use any lubricating soap, and he doesn't advocate the use of it (R. 268). In his experience he has never considered it necessary to use soap in order to provide

against the possibility of the tube being caught or kinked (R. 269).

Dr. Leon B. Linford, professor and head of the Department of Physics at the University of Utah (R. 271) testified that he headed the Department of Physics at the Utah State Agricultural College from 1936 to 1941, and from 1941 to 1946 he was at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Radiation Laboratory. That he has been head of the Physics Department of the University of Utah since 1946. The problem of air pressure, or the ability of materials to resist air pressure, is part of the field of physics, and he is familiar with the phases of physics involving air pressures.

From the standpoint of a physicist, the tube is purely an air container to prevent the air from leaking out. The casing and the rim together constitute a wall strong enough to support the tube so as to support the forces of the air pressure inside. The rim transmits forces from the axle, the weight of the car, the driving force or the braking force, as the case may be, to the casing and from there to the road. The casing also protects the tube from road hazards. The function of the bead is to form a tight enough seal between the casing and the rim so that the tube cannot get underneath and get pinched. An essential portion of the bead, is the wire cable, which gives the bead sufficient strength to withstand the force of air pressure so that the bead is not pulled away from the rim to allow the tube to get underneath. It was stipulated that the bead in Exhibit 7 on both sides was made up of twenty steel wires much in

the same fashion as Exhibit 22, and that each one of these steel wires has the power to resist a pull of 290 pounds, that is, there are only four wires, but there are five turns of each wire, making a total of twenty loops. It was stipulated that the bead in the tire is designed for the purpose of withstanding the combined pulling of 5600 pounds before the bead wires would break. It was further stipulated that it would take approximately 155 pounds of air pressure to pull the wires of the bead apart, or break the wires if the tire were properly mounted (R. 275, 276, 277). The air pressure in the casing puts the cable under tension and it is possible to compute the approximate tension in the cable caused by a certain air pressure in the casing (R. 280).

In interrogatory No. 21 submitted to the defendants the following question was asked: "Has tire No. EEE-001914, or its equivalent ever been tested with regard to the ability of the bead to withstand stretching by any implement or device?" The defendants answered, "Yes". To the further interrogatory, "What experiments have been made and with what results?" the defendants answered: "Tested on bull dozers showing a strength in each bead of approximately 5600 pounds." (R. 283, 284). The defendants also admitted that a General tire of similar quality and construction to Exhibit 7 had been subjected to a test and that the bead broke and blew off the rim at 155 pounds of air pressure (R. 283). Dr. Linford stated that at 35 pounds of air pressure there would be less than 1,000 pounds pull on each of the bead cables, so that if the wires broke when

35 pounds of air pressure were introduced into the tire, that would indicate that the cable wires had a combined strength of about 1,000 pounds rather than 5600 pounds. In case of a defect, one couldn't be sure whether certain wires were completely defective, and that at 1,000 pounds was taken by a fraction of the wire, or whether the force was uniformly loaded (R. 287). In describing how the explosion could have occurred under the plaintiff's evidence, relative to the manner of installation and the amount of air pressure introduced into the tire, Dr. Linford testified that the tire showed no break through the casing so that if an explosion occurred the only place the air could have escaped sufficiently fast would have been to have had the bead slip off the end of the rim (R. 289). When that happens, you have a jet effect which can produce a surprising force (R. 289). He explained this force as follows:

“A. This is the place where the bead has slipped over the rim so that there is a gap. There would be a triangle two inches high at the middle with a base twelve inches long. The area of said triangle is half the base times the altitude or a half of twelve times two which would be twelve square inches. Now there is twelve square inches in which you have got air shooting out one side and the corresponding twelve inches in the opposite direction and which there are thirty-five pounds per square inch on the tire. Well, thirty-five times twelve, if I compute that right, is four hundred and twenty pounds so this fairly small opening here very conservatively with thirty-five pounds means that this started up initially with a force, started up and outward because the jet stream would probably not be directed straight

up, but started out with a force of some four hundred and twenty pounds of pressure as a minimum and it might have been two or three times that size.

“Q. Well, using your minimum calculations based upon your observations of the present condition of the tube and the description that I have given you as to the weight of the wheel and the tire and the man, you would say that a minimum of four hundred and twenty pounds of upward thrust was involved in the explosion?

“A. I would say that is the minimum.”

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