1953

# Jack Aldon Hewitt v. The General Tire and Rubber Co. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

POINT NO. 1. APPELLANT HAS THE BURDEN OF PROVING NEGLIGENCE ON THE PART OF RESPONDENT WHICH IS A PROXIMATE CAUSE OF THE INJURIES TO THE APPELLANT.

In approaching this case, it is perhaps well to review the history of the litigation from which a manufacturer's liability to the persons using the manufactured product arose. In its inception, the doctrine was based on the implied warranty arising out of the sales contract under which the product was sold. However, in recent years, liability has been extended to those using the product, although there is no privity of contract between the manufacturer and the consumer. Perhaps the most famous of these more recent decisions is *MacPherson v. Buick Motor Co.*, 217 N.Y. 382, 111 N.E. 1050, set out in plaintiff's brief.

In that case while the plaintiff was in an automobile manufactured by the defendant and sold to the plaintiff by a retail dealer, the car suddenly collapsed and plaintiff



was thrown out and injured. It developed that one of the wheels was made of defective wood, and its spokes had crumpled into fragments. Defendant had bought the wheel from another manufacturer, but had omitted to inspect the wheel before placing it upon the car. The court held:

“If the nature of the thing is such that it is reasonably certain to place life and limb in peril when negligently made, it is then a thing of danger. Its nature gives warning of the consequences to be expected. If to the element of danger, there is added knowledge that the thing will be used by persons other than the purchaser, and used without new tests, then, irrespective of contract, the manufacturer of this thing of danger is under duty to make it carefully.”

The Restatement of Torts makes a distinction between chattels known to be dangerous for intended use and chattels which are dangerous unless carefully made. Since a rubber tire is not in and of itself inherently dangerous, but only so if it is not carefully made, this case would probably be governed by the rule set out in *Section 395 of the Restatement of the Law of Torts*.

“The manufacturer who fails to exercise reasonable care in the manufacture of a chattel which, unless carefully made, he should recognize as involving an unreasonable risk of causing substantial bodily harm of those who lawfully use it for the purpose for which it is manufactured and to those whom the supplier should expect to be in the vicinity of its probable use, is subject to liability for bodily harm caused to them by its lawful use in a manner and for a purpose for which it is manufactured.”

However, while the doctrine of the manufacturer's liability has been extended beyond the field of contract liability and into the field of tort liability, the cases do not stand for the proposition that the manufacturer is an insurer of the products which it sells. An excellent discussion of the developments in this field of law is found in *164 A.L.R.*, beginning on page 569. The following is taken from that annotation on page 599:

“Even if the old ‘general rule’ is repudiated, and a manufacturer’s liability or non-liability for negligence is predicated purely and simply on the law of torts, dispelling any notions about necessity of privity of contract, it is obvious that in a great many instances the manufacturer will not be held to be liable. But if he is excused from liability, he will be excused because there was no case against him under the law of negligence—a result which is fair, logical and compatible with modern social and economic relationships.

“Thus, a manufacturer will not be held liable, applying ordinary rules of the law of torts and negligence, where the evidence fails to make out a case of negligence against him or that any injury or damage was caused by the manufacturer’s negligence in the manner in which he produced the alleged defective article, chattel or commodity; where the accident happened, and the injuries were occasioned, upon causal analysis, not by negligence or defects in the manufacture of an article, or by failure of the manufacturer to have inspected properly before putting it on the market, but by improper operation or use of the contrivance \* \* \*”

Thus, it is seen that the appellant has the burden of

proving negligence on the part of the respondent, which was a proximate cause of the injuries of which he complains.

In *Darlin v. Henry Ford & Son*, 20 Fed. (2d) 317, the seat of a tractor fell while the purchaser was driving it, causing injuries which resulted in his death. In affirming the directed verdict in favor of the defendant, the court said:

"The defendant could not be held, in putting out the tractor in question, as an insurer of its safety under all the circumstances to which the machine might be subjected. Its duty was to use reasonable care in employing designs, selecting materials, and making assemblies in the construction of a tractor, which would fairly meet any emergency of use which could reasonably be anticipated. \* \* \* Before the plaintiff was entitled to a submission of the case to the jury, the nature of the use to which the machinery was subjected and the cause of the fracture of the cap screw should have been reasonably indicated in the testimony. \* \* \* Here the evidence does not substantially tend to show that there was a lack of care in the selection and testing of materials, or in the designing or assembly of parts, or of the weakness in the cap screw due to deficiencies of substance, which the defendant, in the exercise of diligence charged to it should have apprehended; it does not fairly permit an inference that defendant's liability is reasonably probable, and distinctly more probable than any other suggested explanation. Reflection upon the record produces several independent theories explanatory of the results and its causes, each having some support from the evidence, but none of more consequence than speculation."

In *Sheward, et al. v. Virtue*, 120 Pac. (2d) 142, plaintiff's wife, while sitting in a metal chair in a beauty parlor owned by one of the defendants, fell to the floor when the chair broke. In a suit to recover damages for injuries sustained as a result of the accident, the jury returned verdicts against the owner of the beauty parlor and the manufacturer of the chair. The evidence showed that the owner of the beauty parlor, upon receipt of the chair, some nine months before the accident, carefully inspected the chair and periodically thereafter washed, oiled and inspected the same. An order granting the owner a new trial was affirmed. On appeal, the court held that this defendant exercised the requisite degree of care. Plaintiff's cause of action against the manufacturer was based on the alleged negligence in the manufacturing and assembling of the cast iron chair. The court reversed a judgment against the manufacturer in the absence of any proof by the plaintiff as to the customary standard of care exercised by manufacturers of like chairs. In its opinion the court said :

“If the manufacturer employs a formula calculated to result in a finished product safe for its proposed uses, intentionally selects a material with sufficient technical knowledge, inspects them during the course of their fabrication and assembly and on completion, with a care in proportion to the extent of the risk to be involved in using the chattel, if made without such precautions, he has by such care, method and process fulfilled his obligation to the vendee and to all users of such chattel.”

Nor can negligence be predicated upon the mere happening of the accident.

In *Reusch v. Ford Motor Co.*, 196 Wash. 213, 82 Pac. (2d) 556, suit was brought against the manufacturer of a truck for personal injuries suffered when plaintiff was escaping from a burning truck which had allegedly caught fire because the gas tank and the muffler or exhaust pipe was negligently placed. After discussing the evidence and deciding that there was no evidence of negligence, the court quoted *Rotche v. Buick Motor Co.*, 358 Ill. 507, 193 N. E. 529, with approval:

"The mere fact that an accident resulting in an injury to a person or in damage to property has occurred does not authorize a presumption or inference that the defendant was negligent. The burden was upon the defendant in error to prove by competent evidence, direct or circumstantial, that the plaintiff in error was guilty of negligence in the manufacture or assemblage of the automobile in question."

Nor is the condition of the tire by itself after the explosion evidence of its condition at the time of its manufacture.

In *Rotche v. Buick Motor Co.*, 358 Ill. 507, 193 N. E. 529, it appeared that plaintiff had bought a five-passenger Buick car from one of the defendants and that twenty-six days later, while accompanied by his son in returning home from a twenty-five mile journey at a speed of thirty miles an hour, the car left the roadway. Plaintiff was injured and brought this action to recover for his injuries. Testimony of witnesses was to the effect that the cable leading to the arm, extending from the left front shoe-brake was found to be hanging down and that certain



cotter pins were missing. Evidence was also introduced to show the inspections to which Buick cars were subjected during the course of their construction. Motions by the Buick Motor Company for the arrest of judgment were denied and the judgment was entered against the company for \$17,500.00. The Illinois appellate court affirmed the judgment and, upon appeal, the Supreme Court reversed both the Appellate and Superior Courts and said:

“The burden was upon the defendant in error to prove by competent evidence, direct or circumstantial, that the plaintiff in error was guilty of negligence in the manufacture or assemblage of the automobile in question. Testimony concerning the condition of cotter pins in the brake mechanism several weeks after the accident occurred, without proof that the condition of the pins remained unchanged, was inadmissible and should have been excluded. Such testimony was not responsive to the allegations of the declaration, and could not subject the plaintiff in error to liability.

\* \* \* Whether there was negligence in the assembly of the parts of the automobile owned by the defendant in error, as a result of which the accident occurred, depends almost wholly upon the condition of the cotter pins previous to the sale of the car. With the incompetent testimony excluded, the competent evidence is not sufficiently definite to justify the conclusion that the automobile remained in the same condition from the date of the accident until it was examined by persons who testified that some of the cotter pins were unspread two weeks or more after the accident occurred.”

POINT NO. 2. APPELLANT HAS THE BURDEN OF SHOWING THAT THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE MANUFACTURER WAS THE PROXIMATE CAUSE OF THE EVENT OR ACCIDENT OUT OF WHICH THE INJURIES AROSE.

In *Poore v. Edgar Bros. Co.*, (Cal.) 90 Pac. (2d) 808, a dealer replaced a shatter-proof glass in a second hand automobile with other glass of inferior grade. The car was in a collision and an occupant injured by flying glass. The occupant brought an action against the dealer to recover for his injuries. In deciding the case, the court quoted *Johnson v. Union Furniture Co.*, 31 Cal. App. (2d) 234, 87 Pac. (2d) 917, 919 as follows:

"It is well settled that in order to maintain an action for damages based on the wrongful act or negligence of another, a plaintiff must allege and prove that the wrongful act of the defendant was a direct and proximate cause of the injury. \* \* \* And in this connection, it is generally held that the word 'proximate' is intended to mean direct or immediate, as opposed to remote (*Straten v. Spencer*, 52 Cal. App. 98, 197 P. 540); and that negligence requiring the interposition of new and independent agencies to cause injury is remote (*Oakland Bank of Savings v. Murfey*, 68 Cal. 455, 9 Pac. 843). Moreover in determining the question of proximate cause, care must be taken to avoid confusing two elements which are separate and distinct, namely, that which causes the injury and that without which the injury would not have happened. For the former, the defendant may be liable, for the latter, he may not; that is to say, in order to make a defendant liable his wrongful act must be the *causa causans*, and not merely the *causa sine quo non*. \* \* \* Furthermore, if, subsequent to the initial cause, a new efficient cause



intervenes to affect the injury, having its origin independent of the initial cause, or having its origin therein could not reasonably have been foreseen by a person of ordinary intelligence and prudence as a natural and probable result thereof, it supersedes the initial cause, breaks the connection between the initial cause and the effect, and becomes a proximate cause of the injury rendering the initial cause remote.

"The appellant argues that whether or not the negligence on the part of the respondent was the proximate cause of his injuries, and whether or not there was an intervening cause without which the injury would not have happened, are questions of fact which should have been submitted as such to the court or a jury. If we assume, however, that appellant's injuries would not have been sustained if safety glass had been installed in this door, the fact remains that such injuries were immediately and directly caused by an outside source, with which the respondent had no connection, rather than by an inherent defect in the glass."

In *Youtz v. Thompson Tire Co.*, (Cal.) 116 Pac. (2d) 636, a rim on an inflated tire allegedly repaired by the tire company's employee was not properly locked and a truck driver, in attempting to properly lock the rim so that it could be placed on the truck wheel, struck a hammer held by the plaintiff on the edge of the rim, as a result of which the rim was violently thrown out of the tire, causing injuries to the plaintiff. The trial court granted defendant's motion for a non-suit and the plaintiff appealed. The court sustained the judgment and said:

"The appeal rests upon the single question of

proximate cause, and we will confine the discussion to that issue with the observation that though appellant contends that respondents had knowledge of the defective condition of the tire, he does not direct our attention to any portion of the record which tends to prove that fact. We know of no presumption that the respondents should be deemed to have wilfully and knowingly delivered a defective tire, which they must have known was not usable. It is more reasonable to infer that the defect arose from the careless and negligent manner of assembling it, but with no facts of any kind tending to prove respondent's knowledge, there is no room for an inference that such knowledge was had.

\* \* \*

"Assuming, therefore, that the same rule of liability applies to a repairman as applies to a manufacturer, it is appropriate at this time to state that rule, which is given with its exceptions and limitations in 45 C. J. p. 892 as follows: 'A manufacturer or seller of an article which is not inherently dangerous, but which is rendered dangerous by a defect therein, is liable for an injury to a third person arising from the defect, where he had knowledge of the defect and of the danger, and failed to give notice or warning thereof to the purchaser, or concealed the defect, or represented the article to be safe and sound, or, in other words, was guilty of fraud or deceit. Conversely, the manufacturer or seller is not liable where he had no knowledge of the defect or danger, and made no false representations, or where he gave notice of the defect to the purchaser, or the purchaser had knowledge thereof before the injury. \* \* \*'"

So we see from the foregoing cases that the appel-

lant had the burden of proving by direct evidence that the respondent was guilty of negligence in the manufacture and selling of the tire, which negligence was the proximate cause of the injury of which the appellant complains. This negligence cannot be inferred from the mere happening of the accident, nor the condition of the tire after the explosion, but there must be a causal connection between some act of negligence on the part of the respondent and the injuries claimed to have been received by the appellant.

POINT NO. 3. APPELLANT DID NOT PROVE RESPONDENT GUILTY OF NEGLIGENCE WHICH WAS THE PROXIMATE CAUSE OF THE APPELLANT'S INJURY.

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